
Staff Report 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

FROM: Mary Beth Van Voorhis, Planning Director 

DATE: October 12, 2021 

RE: HIDDEN GROVE – APPLICATION #21-10 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) REVIEW 
INCLUIDNG TRAFFIC STUDY – AWARD OF SERVICES CONTRACT 
ECORP CONSULTING, INC. and GHD 

Recommendation 
Adopt Resolution #21-___ awarding the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review 
agreement to ECORP CONSULTING, INC. (ECORP) including Traffic Study consultant GHD 
and authorizing the Town Manager to execute an agreement acceptable to the Town for the 
preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) consistent with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the evaluation of the proposed Hidden Grove Project 
#21-10 not to exceed $410,240 (ECORP = $340,200 / GHD = $70,040). 

Issue Statement and Discussion 
StoneBridge Properties, LLC has submitted a Senate Bill 330 preliminary application and 
concept plan for a tentative map application for the subdivision of approximately 61.6 acres of 
land currently consisting of seven parcels.  The Project proposes 319 residential units in five 
residential areas identified as medium, medium-high, and high density in the Town’s General 
Plan land use diagram.  The residential units include 120 apartments and 199 single-family 
homes.  The project also includes 12.5 acres of open space, 1.3 acres of parkland, and 0.8 
acres of Town Center Commercial, and internal roadways.  Upon review of the application, it 
was determined an EIR is required as per the CEQA Guidelines. 

Staff sent out Request for Proposals to 16 qualified environmental consulting firms and received 
four proposals. They were evaluated by the Town Manager, Town Engineer, Town Planning 
Staff, and Planning Consultants from Hauge, Brueck and Associates.  After evaluation, ECORP 
was selected to prepare the EIR and GHD to prepare a Traffic Study based on the following 
factors. 

1. ECORP’s proposal demonstrated a better understanding of the project’s issues and was
more specific in addressing the objectives of the Town.

2. ECORP had the shortest timeline, maintaining a tight schedule for project completion.

3. The ECORP proposal’s cost was the median between the highest and lowest bids.
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4. ECORP’s local experience in the unincorporated Placer County area and Rocklin area, 
along with experience in similar projects, assures the work will be done on time and on 
budget. 
 

5. GHD’s proposal for a Traffic Study, will ensure both consistency with the Town’s General 
Plan and CEQA transportation analysis requirements (SB 743) under ECORP’s  
 

ECORP has accepted the Town’s selection of GHD to prepare the traffic impact analysis for the 
Project and will retain GHD under contract to ECORP. 

 
CEQA Requirements 
As required by the California Environmental Quality Act, ECORP will prepare an Environmental 
Impact Report to evaluate the Hidden Grove Project Application #21-10 including updated 
technical studies for air quality/GHG/HRA, biological resources, cultural resources, hydrology, 
and noise along with GHD’s Traffic Study.  ECORP will address all impact areas identified in 
CEQA Guidelines Appendix G as a part of the CEQA process. 
 
The project area includes: 
 Address      Assessor Parcel Number 
 3627 Gates Lane     043-080-044 
 3621 Laird Street     044-094-001 
 5913 Horseshoe Bar Road    044-094-005, 006, & 010 
 5901 Horseshoe Bar Road    044-094-004 
 5885 Horseshoe Bar Road    043-080-015 
 5895 Horseshoe Bar Road    043-080-007 & 008 
 
Financial and/or Policy Implications 
The project applicant, StoneBridge Properties has signed a Reimbursement Agreement with the 
Town, to fund the cost of the preparation of the Environmental Impact Report, and deposited the 
full cost of its preparation in the Town’ Trust account.   

 
Attachments 

Exhibit A – ECORP Consulting, Inc. – Proposal 
Exhibit B – GHD – Proposal 



TOWN OF LOOMIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-___ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING AN ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO ECORP 
CONSULTING, INC., INCLUDING TRAFFIC STUDY BY GHD AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ACCEPTABLE TO THE TOWN FOR 
THE PREPARATION OF AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE EVALUATION 
OF THE HIDDEN GROVE PROJECT (APPLICATION #21-10) NOT TO EXCEED $410,240. 

 
 WHEREAS, Stonebridge Properties submitted an application for the subdivision of 
approximately 61.6 acres of land currently consisting of seven parcels.  The Project proposes 
319 residential units in five residential areas identified as medium, medium-high, and high 
density in the Town’s General Plan land use diagram.  The residential units include 120 
apartments and 199 single-family homes.  The project also includes 12.5 acres of open space, 
1.3 acres of parkland, and 0.8 acres of Town Center Commercial, and internal roadways.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, upon review of the application, it was determined an Environmental Impact 
Report is required as per the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Staff sent out Request for Proposals to 16 qualified environmental 
consulting firms and received four proposals that were evaluated by the Town Manager, Town 
Engineer, Town Planning Staff, and Planning Consultants from Hauge, Brueck and Associates; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, after careful evaluation, ECORP Consulting, Inc. was selected to prepare 
the Environmental Impact Report at a cost not to exceed $340,200 in addition to GHD to provide 
a Traffic Study at a cost not to exceed $70,040 for a total combined not to exceed amount of 
$410,240; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project applicant has signed a Reimbursement Agreement with the 
Town to fund the cost of the preparation of the Environmental Impact Report and deposited the 
full cost of its preparation in the Town’s Trust Account.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Town of Loomis accepts the 
proposal of ECORP, CONSULTING, Inc, with GHD for the Traffic Study and hereby authorizes 
the Town Manager to execute an agreement acceptable to the Town for the preparation of an 
Environmental Impact Report for the evaluation of the Hidden Grove Project (Application #21-
10) not-to-exceed $410,240. 
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the Town of Loomis this 12th day of 
October, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:   
 ABSTAINED:  
 ABSENT:  
       ________________________________  
       Jeff Duncan, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
        
_____________________________   
Carol Parker, Deputy Town Clerk 
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